
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 7:00pm

Columbia Room
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from the January 21, 2020, regular meeting
IV. Open forum for the general public                                                     Sheppard  
V. Reports 
VI. Previous business

i. Earthquake insurance (ACTION)         Fox
VII. New business   

i. Budget calendar approval and budget committee discussion (ACTION) Fox
ii. Contract renewal Ruben Cleaveland District legal counsel (ACTION)       Fox
iii. Meeting room policy (ACTION)                                                                    Fox
iv. Gardens Maintenance contract renewal                                                          Fox
v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson, Inc.            Fox
vi. Library reader board sign discussion                                                          Fox
vii. Art installation request discussion                                                             Fox

viii. Library crosswalk discussion                                                                    Fox
VIII. Agenda items for next meeting                                                                 Sheppard
IX. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19] 1



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Wednesday, February 19, 2020, 7:00pm

Columbia Room
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from the January 21, 2020, regular meeting
Attachments:

• III.ii. Minutes of January 21, 2020 regular meeting

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard  
 

V. Reports 
i. Friends update   Fox

• The Friends of the Library will hold their annual book sale Thursday, May 27-Saturday, 
May 30. 

• The Friends are looking for volunteers to help with a special task. Almost every month 
of the year they have had volunteers set up a display on the small table in the main 
foyer of the library. Currently they are in need of some more volunteers to help with this
task. The volunteer has to set up a display on the table or wall that is welcoming to the 
patrons on a monthly basis. The display can be flowers, paintings, a banner, etc., the 
display can be seasonal or have a theme. If a patron volunteers for this task they 
would be asked to help out 1-3 times a year for setting up a display.

• The Friends of the Library members discussed their holiday social at their last meeting 
and decided to make a few minor adjustments next year. Overall, everyone loved 
having the event at the library during the day, instead of another venue in the evening. 

ii. Foundation update Fox
• The Library Foundation held their fundraiser at pFriem in January. Over 40 people 

attended the event. They are still waiting for the results of the funds raised through 
drink sales at pFriem. 

• The Library Foundation board is busy planning the upcoming Feast of Words 
fundraiser. The fundraiser will be held Saturday, March 14, 6pm. At the 2020 Feast of 
Words, the Library Foundation’s goal is to raise $30,000 in order to improve 
infrastructure at our facilities so as to protect our prior investments and continue to 
enhance library services for everyone. In particular, repairs are needed in the masonry 
of the original Hood River Library building, which has served us well for over 100 
years! This is an important project so that the Library District can provide regular library

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 2



service to the all areas of our County in accessible, safe facilities with modern 
amenities. The money raised will also fund the popular Makerspace and Library of 
Things collection.

• The Library Foundation Board will hold their annual donor thank you event at the Hood 
River Library in the fall. The board discussed the change from a morning breakfast 
event to evening event increased attendance.   

• The Foundation is looking for volunteers to help out at the Feast of Words scheduled 
for Saturday March 14th. Volunteers are needed for morning, afternoon, and evening 
shifts. In the morning or afternoon shifts volunteers may be helping prep food trays, 
move tables, chairs or bookcases, help with displays, put up a stage, or decorate 
tables. In the evening volunteers may be asked to monitor the food situation, fill food 
trays, take food to and from the tables, clean up, help check in patrons, register 
participants for the auction. Clean up involves moving tables and chairs, taking down 
displays, cleaning up etc. Volunteers can contact: Dawn Fitchen 
dawnfitchen@gmail.com.

iii. January 2020 financial statements Fox
Attachments:

• V.iiii. January financial statements

We are tracking well and have paid for several of our large annual invoices for this fiscal year.

This month we transferred $80,000 from contingency to the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund 
to pay for the HVAC unit. Next month we will transfer the $43,000 planned transfer from the 
General Fund into the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund. The transfer will be reflected on the 
February financial statements. 

iv. Director's report Fox

Administration
• I would like to discuss the Feasibility and Scoping Exercise in Odell at our March 18 

board meeting. In the meantime, I’m consulting with library staff and consultants to 
determine how to proceed. 

Facilities
• Our new HVAC roof top has been installed. The installation went smoothly. As part of 

the installation package we also received new controls for the system. 

• I recently discovered a corner of the children’s library floor had slightly sunk. The 
section of the floor was built on top of the old stairwell. Our buildings maintenance 
person Michael Peterson has filled in the area and it is now stabilized. He also had to 
pull up the carpet and fix the floor inside the library.

Personnel
• We have also hired Kathy Philbin as our new Public Service Clerk substitute. Kathy 

has many years of customer service experience and comes to us most recently from 

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 3

mailto:dawnfitchen@gmail.com


Rite Aid. She has also worked at the Mid Columbia Children's Council and as an 
accountant. 

• Assistant Director Arwen Ungar and her partner Andrew Myers welcomed Rosie 
Josephine Myers February 13 at 6:49pm. She was 20 inches long and weighed 7.2 
pounds. Ungar will return to work Tuesday, May 5. 
 

Programs
• AARP tax aide – Mondays, February – April 13, 2:00-6:00pm at the Hood River 

Branch.

• Black History month – Wednesday programs at the Hood River Branch at 5:30pm.

• Raptors in love - Raptor Love Stories: An Intimate Exploration into the Lives of Avian 
Couples and Families – Hood River Branch, February 14, 5:00-6:00pm.

• Makerspace: Card board armor class. Saturday, February 22, 10am-2pm. A local teen 
will lead participants through a simple process of constructing a pauldron (shoulder 
armor) from cardboard and other simple materials. Must register ahead. 8 yrs and up 
only, please. 

• Makerspace Open play, Saturdays, 10a.m. to 2p.m. Patrons can come check out all 
the tools in the Makerspace. This in an opportunity to explore the tools without 
instruction. This program has been wildly popular.

• Teens will have a chance to make a heart shaped cake and attend a movie night this 
month. 

• The Hood River County Reads program will start in March. This year the selection is 
The Highest Tide by Jim Lynch. "In his superb first novel, Olympia's Jim Lynch has 
achieved a unique literary Triple Crown: 1) best coming-of-age novel set in the Pacific 
Northwest in recent memory; 2) best novel to resurrect the writing of the visionary 
Rachel Carson; 3) best novel to educate people about that mysteriously awesome 
place where freshwater meets the sea."-Oregonian

• Hood River Reads Programs and events

◦ Saturday, March 7, 2:00pm - Kick-off at the Hood River Library. Book distribution, 
art, and refreshments.

◦ Tuesday, March 10, 5-7pm – Kick-off at the Parkdale and Cascade Locks Libraries. 
Book distribution. 

◦ Thursday, March 21, 11:00am – Makerspace: Hood River’s Giant Squid. 
Participants can help create a giant squid for the library teen area. 

◦ Saturday, March 26,6:30pm – Presentation: Powered by Science: from Rachel 
Carson to Greta Thunberg. There will be a movie and discussion with Dr. Antonio 
Baptista.

◦ Thursday, April 2, 6:30pm-8:00pm – Hood River Library Book Club.

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 4



◦ Saturday, April 4, 2:00pm – Warming of the Gorge and the Impact on Mountains, 
Mammels, and Humans with Bill Weiler and Darryl Lloyd. 

◦ Saturday, April 11, 10:00am;12:00pm – Earth Month Tree Planting with Bill Weiler. 
Barrett Park: bring shovel, gloves: see parking instructions on the library website. 

◦ Saturday, April 18, 10:00am – Writing Workshop with author Jim Lynch. 
Reservations start Saturday, March 7 at 2pm. Call, email, or visit the library.

◦ Sunday, April 19, 2:00pm – Public Presentation with author Jim Lynch. 

Statistics

• Our Library of Things food preservation equipment has seen 152 checkouts from May-
December 2019. We partnered with the Hood River County Oregon State University 
Extention Service to loan their food preservation equipment to our patrons through our 
Library of Things collection. The OSU Extension Service had been running the 
program out of the Extension office since 2014. They averaged 20-30 rentals a year for
a total over the first 6 years of about 130 rentals. In just the first 7 months of circulation 
the library has seen 152 checkouts.

VI. Previous business
i. Earthquake insurance (ACTION)    Fox

At the January 21, 2020 Library Board meeting the board discussed adding earthquake 
insurance to our policy in the amount of $3,323. This is in addition to the $9,669 we will be 
paying this fiscal year for property and liability insurance. Sheppard requested Fox review our 
budget and determine if we have the funds available to add the insurance to our policy this 
month. I reviewed our General Fund and we have funds available in the Building Maintenance
line item. We have allocated spending $20,000 in buildings maintenance this year. As of 
January 31, 2020 we have spent $8,741 and I estimate we will spend an additional $6,000 by 
the end of the fiscal year for a total of $14,741. 

VII. New business   
i. Budget calendar approval and budget committee discussion (ACTION)  Fox

Attachment: VII.i. Proposed 2020-21 budget calendar

With the start of the new year comes the start of the next fiscal year's budget process. It 
begins with approving the budget calendar, which delineates when the budget committee will 
meet, when notices are published in the paper, and when the budget is approved by the 
Board. Our budget is reviewed by the budget committee, a group consisting of the Board of 
Directors and an equivalent number of community members. 

Budget committee members are appointed to 3-year terms. Monica Zorza Hocket and Lani 
Roberts terms ended in 2019. I would like to discuss if the board would like me to contact 
them and inquire if they would like to renew for another 3-year term. Currently, our Budget 
Committee is Jen Bayer, Erick VonLubken, and Amber Bello.  I have received confirmation 
from Bayer and VonLubken they can attend our meetings in May. I hope to connect with 
Amber Bello before our meeting on Wednesday. 

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 5



I’m asking the board to approve the budget calendar. The board can approve the budget 
committee at our meeting in March.

ii. Contract renewal Ruben Cleaveland District legal counsel (ACTION)       Fox
Attachment:

VII.ii. Attorney services contract renewal Ruben Cleaveland  

Our legal contract with VanKoten and Cleaveland for legal services expires February 29, 
2020. Ruben Cleaveland took over providing service to the District in 2016. Cleaveland’s 
services have been invaluable, and he has also been easy to work with. The payable rate is 
$175/hour and will not increase with a contract renewal. I recommend we renew the contract 
for an additional year. 

iii. Meeting room policy (ACTION)   Fox
Attachment: 

• VII.iii. Meeting room policy

I recently reviewed our procedures and policy for scheduling our meeting room for users. Our 
current policy states groups using the meeting room are required to complete a meeting room
use form if they are using the room when the library is normally closed or if conducting an 
event that requires the District be paid a fee. I want to eliminate the use of the application 
form. 

Our meeting room is heavily used by our community. Last year 593 groups used our meeting 
room. Patrons have been using the library meeting room since 2004 and we have never had 
a theft or damage by patrons. To increase efficiency for library staff and patrons I request we 
no longer require patrons to fill out a form. Patrons accept responsibility when they use our 
meeting room as stated in our meeting room policy. 

I consulted with our lawyer Ruben Cleaveland and he agreed to keep the process simple with 
the realization that the risk is actually quite low based on history of use and the fact that 
patrons are using the room for their benefit. 

I’m asking the board to approve the updated meeting room policy which eliminates the 
following sentence, “Groups wishing to use the Meeting Room are required to complete a 
meeting room use form if using the room when the library is normally closed or if conducting 
an event that requires the District be paid a fee.” 

iv. Gardens Maintenance contract renewal Fox
Attachments:

• VII.iv. Gardens Maintenance contract renewal

Mora’s Lawn Maintance has been taking care of our grounds since 2019. I recommend we 
extend our contract for another year. The rate will remain the same at $1,100 per month for 
$13,200 per year. 

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 6



It is good practice to go through the bidding process every three to five years. I recommend 
we rebid next year. The contract renewal has been prepared by our lawyer Ruben 
Cleaveland. The contract with be for services from March 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021.

v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson, Inc.      Fox
Attachment: 

• VII.v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson

Hunter-Davisson recently completed the installation of our new HVAC and controls. I was 
impressed by their service and expertise. They also recently worked on our boiler which had 
been shutting offer intermittently. Two other companies could not identify the issue with the 
boiler. Hunter-Davisson made adjustments to the unit and we have not experienced any 
issues in the past few months. The technician they sent to work on the boiler had over 30 
years experience with boilers. 

It is extremely important we regularly maintain our HVAC and boiler. We have funds to pay for
a preventative maintenance plan. The annual cost of the plan is $4,980. They will visit 
quarterly. We have budgeted $15,000 this year for HVAC/boiler repairs. As of January 21, 
2020 we have spent $6,720. I recommend we use Hunter-Davvison for our Preventative 
Maintenance plan. The contract is for one year and can be renewed. In addition, we can 
cancel anytime with 30 days notice.  

vi. Library reader board sign discussion                                                   Fox
I recently received feedback from a library patron named Marga Sarriugarte regarding our 
new reader board sign. She has requested the sign be moved to another location on the 
property. Sarriugarte expressed the current placement of the sign cheapens the aesthetic 
appeal of the old building and degrades the authenticity of the unique and historical piece of 
architecture. It’s not the sign exists but it’s the placement of the sign. She believes the sign 
should be moved to another location on library’s property like the library lawn or grounds 
since this would inform the public but not as loudly as it does now which detracts from the 
beauty of the original building. 

I gave the option that Sarriugarte could attend our board meeting or I could bring her request 
to the library board and report back to her. Sarriugarte stated it would work for me to share 
her opinion with the board. I would like to discuss her feedback and request.

vii. Art installation request discussion                                                             Fox
Attachment: 

• VII.vii.a. Description of the art project
• VII.vii.b. Photo of proposed sculpture
• VII.vii.c. Resume Chas Martin 

I have been approached by a former resident of the gorge named Chas Martin. He is applying
for a grant to create a sculpture through the Oregon Community Foundation’s Creative 
Heights program. The project will be accomplished in partnership with Columbia Center for 
the Arts which will manage the finances. 

Page 6

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 7



Martin is currently trying to identify a location for the finished sculpture. Art of Community (Big 
Art), the organization that manages the placement of most of the public sculptures in Hood 
River has suggested the Hood River County Library as a potential location. 

I informed Chas Martin we currently do not have a policy in place regarding donations or 
installation on library grounds. I told him I would take his request to the library board for 
discussion. I also recommend we explore adding a policy in the near future to address 
requests by the public regarding donations and art installations. 

viii.Library crosswalk discussion                                                             Fox
Recently you may have read three letters to the editor which discussed the safety at the 
crosswalk in front of the library. Two patrons have been recently hit in the cross walk within 
the past few months. I reached out the Hood River City administrator Rachael Fuller and told 
her I would be discussing this issue with the board and we would like to address the safety 
issues at the crosswalk. Fuller stated she the city is aware of the issue and they are happy to 
work with us. I’d like to discuss this further.  

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting                                                                 Sheppard
• Timeline for Library Director Evaluation
• Staff presentation Children’s Librarian Jana Hannigan
• Renewal contract Tedene Enterprises for Janitorial services
• Budget committee approval
• Library policy

IX. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Page 7

Board meeting agenda [2020-02-19], supplementary info 8



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, January 21, 2020, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Present: Rachael Fox (staff), Jean Sheppard, Karen Bureker (phone), Megan Janik, Sara Marsden, 
Jon Davies, and Tiffany Elvum (phone).

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
Board President Jean Sheppard called the meeting to order at 7:05pm. Fox stated she had an
updated version of Resolution 2019-20.06 for the board to approve. Marsden moved to 
approve the agenda as amended. Janik seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
None stated.

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
Marsden moved to approve the consent agenda. Janik seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

IV. Open forum for the general public Sheppard
Jon Davies was present.

V. Audit presentation Kamp 
Attachments: 

• V.a. Audit 2018-19 – Communication to the governing body
• V.b. Audit 2018-19 – Financial report

Tiffany Elvrum from our auditing firm Pauly, Rogers, and Co. attended the January library 
board meeting by phone. The District Board received a Letter to the Governing Board and the
audit report which included financial statements. Elvrum gave the District a clean opinion with 
no reservations and there were no separate management issues. Elvrum stated overall it was
very good. She reported no difficulties in performing the audit.   
                           

VI. Property and Liability insurance discussion Davies
Sheppard mentioned there was a large price increase. Davies directed the board to the 
figures in the renewal documentation included in the board packet. The main areas of 
increase were for the general liability and property. Davies mentioned there were more 
employees. Sheppard asked Fox did we increase employees. Fox stated we hired a few more
substitutes this year. Davies stated there was an increase in the budgeted Materials and 
Services. The Property insurance increased 2.4% which was in line for all the Districts. 

Davies stated the building is insured for 4.5 million and the collection for 1.7 million. He stated

III.ii. Minutes of January 21, 2020 regular meeting 9



these numbers went back to the former library director’s Buzzy Nielsen’s time. Sheppard 
stated we should have the property and contents accessed. Davies stated Special Districts 
Insurance Services (SDIS) is currently visiting all the properties and will be reassessing the 
property and contents in the near future. 

Davies stated we could eliminate the rental car coverage and it will save the District a little 
money. He also mentioned there is a rate lock and SDIS can not raise our rates more than 
5% over the next two years. 

Davies also mentioned employment practices and board defamation claims. He stated SDIS 
offers free legal advice and the requirement for coverage is to contact SDIS before any 
disciplinary measures or any action taken by the District. Otherwise, the District will have to 
pay the first $25,00 of a law suite. Fox stated she contacts SDIS with any questions regarding
employees in regards to possible disciplinary measures. 

The board then discussed adding earth quake insurance. Sheppard asked Davies if all 
Special Districts covered by SDIS have earthquake insurance and Davies stated most of 
them do have it. Fox asked Davies to explain the coverage offered in the event of the 
earthquake. Davies stated if the total damage statewide to entities covered exceeds 100 
million, the payment for damage will be prorated to the entities.

Marsden stated she recommended coverage because if there was damage and the building 
was not covered it would be difficult to ask tax payers for funds to assist with the damage. 
Sheppard asked Fox to review the budget and determine if the District could afford to add the 
insurance this fiscal year. Fox stated she would review the budget and report back at the next 
board meeting. 

VII. Reports 
i. Friends update   Fox

There was nothing to add to the written report. 

ii. Foundation update Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

iii. December 2020 financial statements Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

iv. Director's report Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

VIII.Previous business   
i. Board Planning Session – Marketing and Auditing discussion Fox

The board discussed the Library consultant Penny Hummel’s writeup. They identified the 
following steps to achieve the goals
Goal #1 Develop a meaningful library presence in Odell

Page 2

III.ii. Minutes of January 21, 2020 regular meeting 10



• Action: 
◦ Feasibility Study

Goal #2: Increase adult and teen use of the Cascade Locks Library
• Action:

◦ Survey to CL residents and combine with hours survey
◦ Connect with Cascade Locks coalition (comprised of Cascade Locks organizations)

to cross promote and partner 

Goal #3: Do the best job we can telling the library’s story
• Action: 

◦ Redesign informational brochure (Fall 2020)
◦ Send out annual report (September 2020) 
◦ Review and redesign enewsletter (Fall 2020)
◦ Conduct a community/hours survey (Fall 2020)
◦ Fox will review the storytelling toolkit and gather ideas (Fall 2020)

Goal #4: Increase use of the Hood River Library by Latinx Community members
• Action: 

◦ Brainstorm with Bilingual Outreach Librarian Yeli Boots (Ongoing)
▪ Identify and address barriers to access like privacy concerns, etc. Alternative 

options like free items or uncatalogued items. 
◦ Explore collection statistics to tell how the collection is or isn’t being used 

(Fall/Winter 2020)
◦ Hire more bilingual staff (ongoing)
◦ Change signage in Hood River Library – Bilingual (2020-2021)

The board also brainstormed other possible ways to advertise services. Sheppard suggested 
advertising in the Catholic Church bulletin and the One Community Health and Health 
Department bulletin boards. Sheppard also suggested ad Catholic church across the river. 
Fox stated she would contact Bilingual Outreach Specialist Yeli Boots to discuss these 
additional avenues for marketing.

ii. Review Feasibility and Scoping Exercise Proposals    Fox
Sheppard stated the proposals were over our target budget. Marsden agreed. Fox stated she 
consulted with Assistant Director Arwen Ungar and Bilingual Outreach Librarian Yeli Boots 
and we recommended re-scoping the project and having staff take on tasks to reduce the 
budget. Fox stated she would consult Special District Association Oregon to determine if we 
can negotiate with current bidders to re-scope the project or if we would need to go out for bid
again. 

iii. Resolution 2019-20.06, Amend Resolution No. 2019-20.04 transferring 
appropriations between the General Fund & Capital Equipment Fund to 
include authorizing expending funds from the Capital Equipment Fund for 
the HVAC unit

Page 3

III.ii. Minutes of January 21, 2020 regular meeting 11



Fox contacted the Oregon Department of Revenue, our District accountant at Onstott, Broehl 
& Cyphers and our auditors Pauly Rogers and Co to review the resolution. The auditors 
approved the final resolution which Fox distributed to library board members. Janik moved to 
approve the updated Resolution 2019-20.06. Marsden seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously.

IX.  Agenda items for next meeting                                                 Sheppard

X. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Page 4

III.ii. Minutes of January 21, 2020 regular meeting 12



V.iiii. January financial statements 13



V.iiii. January financial statements 14



V.iiii. January financial statements 15



V.iiii. January financial statements 16



V.iiii. January financial statements 17



V.iiii. January financial statements 18



V.iiii. January financial statements 19



V.iiii. January financial statements 20



V.iiii. January financial statements 21



2020-2021 Budget Calendar

Wednesday, April 15, 2020
Publish Website Notice of First Budget Committee Meeting
(5 - 30 days before hearing)

Wednesday, April 22, 2020
Publish Newspaper Notice of First Budget Committee Meeting
(5 - 30 days before hearing, at least 5 days apart)

Tuesday, May 12, 2020, 6.00 - 8.00p, at Hood River Library
First Budget Committee Meeting

• Receive budget message
• Presentation of budget document
• Budget Committee deliberations and questions
• Public comment 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020, 6.00 - 7.00p, at Hood River Library
Second Budget Committee Meeting
(if necessary)

• Budget Committee deliberations and questions

Saturday, May 30, 2020
Publish financial summaries and Notice of Budget Hearing
(one publication, 5 – 30 days before hearing)

Tuesday, June 16, 2020, 7.00p, at Hood River Library
Public hearing

• Meeting to adopt budget, appropriate funds, and levy property taxes

Thursday, July 2, 2020
Deliver notice of property tax form LB-50 to County Tax Assessor
(by July 15)

• LB-50 (2 copies)
• Resolution passing budget (2 copies with original signatures)
• Budget (2 copies)
• Affidavits of publication (Budget Committee meeting & Budget Hearing)

VII.i. Proposed 2020-21 budget calendar 22



Attorney Contract Renewal - Page 1 of 1 

 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

ATTORNEY SERVICES CONTRACT RENEWAL 

 

PARTIES:  

 

Hood River County Library District     (“Client”) 

 502 State Street 

 Hood River, OR  97031 

 

 VanKoten & Cleaveland LLC      (“Contractor”) 

 417 Sherman Ave., Ste. 7 

 Hood River, OR  97031 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. Contractor was engaged to provide legal services to the District pursuant to an Attorney 

Services Contract, which expires on February 29, 2020; 

 

B. The Contract may be renewed by mutual consent of the Parties; and 

 

C. The Parties desire to renew the contract for an additional one year term. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE MUTUAL PROMISES OF THE PARTIES, 

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The renewal term of the Contract is for one (1) year. Unless this Contract is terminated  

in accordance with its terms or extended, this contract ends on February 28, 2021. 

 

2. All other terms and conditions of the Contract remain in full force and effect. 

 

 IT IS SO AGREED by the Parties hereto as indicated by the signatures of their 

authorized representatives: 

CONTRACTOR     CLIENT: 

 

___________________________________  __________________________________ 

Ruben Cleaveland   date  Jean Sheppard, President  date  

VanKoten & Cleaveland LLC     

VII.ii. Attorney services contract renewal Ruben Cleaveland 23



Meeting and Study Rooms Policy

Meeting room space is provided in the Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community 
Meeting Room and study rooms of the Hood River Library in order to 
promote the Hood River County Library District's mission to provide access 
to the power of information and imagination.

Purpose and Scope of the Meeting Room
Meeting room space is reserved primarily for District, Friends of the Library, and Library 
Foundation activities. 

Nonprofit, civic, and community organizations or government entities may use meeting room 
space without charge for non-commercial uses such as meetings, lectures, or similar activities
whenever a conflict does not exist with District or affiliate group activities. Such events must 
be open to the general public to be eligible for free use of the Meeting Room.

Organizations or individuals may use the Meeting Room for commercial activities or private 
events - which include selling products or services, fundraising, events where a fee is 
charged, private parties, or depositions - for $20 per hour, billable in hour increments. The 
maximum daily cost for using the Meeting Room shall be $160.

 Businesses and commercial organizations may use the Meeting Room without charge for 
educational and informational purposes or for staff meetings and trainings at the discretion of 
the Library Director.

Meeting Room use does not constitute District endorsement of the beliefs or ideas expressed 
by users of the space. Events will not be publicized in a manner suggesting library 
sponsorship or affiliation. The District's name, address, email, or phone number may not be 
used as the contact information for any event except those sponsored by the District or 
affiliate groups.

Rules on using the Meeting Room 
The Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room is considered a limited public forum and
thus is open to all legal content and viewpoints, with the restrictions noted in this policy.

Space is available to the public on a first-come, first-served basis and may be reserved up to 
six months in advance. In order to allow maximum access to the room, regular weekly 
bookings are only allowed at the sole discretion of District Staff, taking into account the 
requested duration of the booking and the foreseeable availability of the room.  

Groups wishing to use the Meeting Room are required to complete a meeting room use form 
if using the room when the library is normally closed or if conducting an event that requires 
the District be paid a fee. Event organizers are responsible for abiding by the terms of this 
policy, other District policies, any accompanying rules of use, and local, state, and federal 
laws. Violation of these terms may result in denial of future access to the space per the 

VII.iii. Meeting room policy 24



Meeting Room Policy, p.2

Library Use Restrictions Policy.

An event organizer wishing to book the room must be a responsible adult over age 
seventeen. This person shall assume full responsibility for any injury or damage to District 
property, building, furnishings, artwork, or equipment that results from the group’s use of the 
facility. When an event includes people younger than age eighteen, the following number of 
adults are required for each age group of children, per Oregon regulations regarding 
childcare:

Ages 0-2: 1 adult per 4 children
Age 2: 1 adult per 5 children
Ages 3-4: 1 adult per 10 children
Ages 5-17: 1 adult per 15 children

People attending events must make their own provisions for childcare and supervision. 
Children under the age of ten must not be left unattended in the library. Ensure children under 
age 10 be accompanied by a parent, guardian, or responsible caregiver 14 or older. Children 5 and 
under must always be in close proximity and within sight of the person responsible for their safety

Users are responsible for setting up chairs or tables. Furniture may not be moved from one 
room to another without staff approval. All furniture and equipment must be returned to their 
original locations.

Materials are not to be attached to walls, windows, doors, or furnishings except at the 
direction of Library Director or designee. Activities which the Library Director determines 
would adversely impact the facility or furnishings will not be allowed. 

Meeting Room users may put up directional signs slightly before and during the event to 
direct people to it. However, library staff may remove the signs if they interfere with regular 
District operations or imply District sponsorship. Such signs must be removed promptly after 
the event is finished.

The District does not assume liability for personal injuries, nor does it assume liability for 
damage or theft of personal property which occur as a result of the actions of the organizers 
or participants in events scheduled in District facilities.

Do no possess, sell, distribute or consume any alcoholic beverage, except as a participant at 
a library event for which alcohol use has been pre-approved. 

Unauthorized reproduction or public display of any material in the Meeting Room is prohibited 
if it is not covered by a public performance license for the District or the event organizer or for 
which a written waiver of the applicable rights has not first been obtained. 

The Meeting Room is open for use at any time. However, certain after-hours usage may 
require additional approval by the Library Director or designee. When not scheduled, anyone 
may use the Meeting Room on a first-come, first-served basis, but priority is given to groups 
over individuals.

VII.iii. Meeting room policy 25



Meeting Room Policy, p.3

Maximum room capacity is 49 people, including organizers/presenters. Meeting organizers 
are responsible for crowd control. Meetings must be confined to the Jeanne Marie Gaulke 
Community Meeting Room. Programs must not interfere with District operations. 

Use of Study Rooms
The District provides the Kimber and Parker rooms in the Hood River Library as study rooms 
for public use. They can be used on a first-come, first-served; the District does not take 
reservations for study rooms. Daily use is limited to two hours. A maximum of five people may
use a room at one time.

Exceptions to these policies and rules are at the discretion of the Library Director.

Approved by the Board of Directors: July 12, 2011
Last amended: April 16, 2019 February 19, 2020
Last reviewed: April 16, 2019 February 19, 2020

VII.iii. Meeting room policy 26



Extension of Garden Maintenance Services - Page 1 of 1 

 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 

EXTENSION OF CONTRACT FOR GARDENS MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

(Extension No. 1) 

 

DATE: ____________________ 

 

PARTIES: Hood River County Library District     (“District”) 

  502 State Street 

  Hood River, OR  97031 

 

  Mora’s Lawn Maintenance      (“Contractor”) 

  2623 East 10th Street 

  The Dalles, OR  97058 

 

RECITALS 

 

 Whereas, Contractor and District entered into a Contract (“Contract”) for gardens 

maintenance services for certain areas of District’s property located at 502 State Street, Hood 

River, Oregon; 

 

 Whereas, the initial Contract term is from March 20, 2019, to February 29, 2020; 

 

 Whereas, the Contract states that it ends on February 29, 2020 unless it is extended, and 

the parties wish to extend the contract for an additional 1-year term; 

 

 Whereas, the Contract was awarded after soliciting at least three quotes as required by the 

intermediate procurement method; and 

 

Whereas, this extension is within the scope of the procurement, and the total price of the  

Contract with the extension does not exceed the limits for intermediate procurements. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE MUTUAL PROMISES OF THE PARTIES, THE 

PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  The above referenced Contract is extended for an additional 1-year term. The 

additional term shall begin on March 1, 2020, and expire on February 28, 2021.      

2.  All other terms and conditions of the Contract remain in full force and effect. 

IT IS SO AGREED by the Parties hereto effective as of the date stated above.   

CONTRACTOR:     DISTRICT: 

 

___________________________________  __________________________________ 

By:       Jean Sheppard     

Title:       Board President  

VII.iv. Gardens Maintenance contract renewal 27



 

 

HUNTER-DAVISSON, INC. 
 

Heating ● Air Conditioning ● Refrigeration ● Controls ● Contractors ● Engineers 
 

1800 S.E. PERSHING STREET ● PORTLAND, OREGON 97202 
PHONE (503) 234-0477 ● FAX (503) 236-1625 

www.hunterdavisson.com CCB #1612 
 

2/10/2020 

 

Hood River County Library District 

502 State St 

Hood River, OR 97031-2042 

 

Attn:  Rachael Fox 

 

Re: Hood River County Library District  

502 State St 

Hood River, OR 97031-2042 

  

Dear Rachael Fox, 

 

To keep these mechanical systems operating efficiently, we recommend our periodic Preventative Maintenance 

Program. We have found this eliminates many unnecessary emergency service calls and prolongs equipment 

life. 

 

Equipment List:  

 

1) Boiler - Water (1) 

2) Trane Unit (1) 

 

 

Our Preventative Maintenance Program consists of the following periodically performed maintenance tasks as 

stated below: 

 

All Equipment 
 

Check and tighten electrical connections Quarterly 

Check fan and mount. bolts for tightness Quarterly 

Check for air leaks Quarterly 

Check for power Quarterly 

Check operating conditions Quarterly 

Lubricate bearings Quarterly 

Test unit for proper operation Quarterly 

  

VII.v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson 28

http://www.hunterdavisson.com/


HUNTER-DAVISSON, INC. 
 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 20200210-152221.docm 02/10/2020 

 

 

Boiler - Water 
 

Blow down suspended solids Quarterly 

Check OSA temperature lockout Quarterly 

Check and tighten electrical connections Quarterly 

Check for proper water level Quarterly 

Inspect and clean burners Quarterly 

Test unit for proper operation Quarterly 

Trane AC 
 

Change filters and date Quarterly 

Check OSA damper operation and lubricate Quarterly 

Check and clean drain pan and p-trap Quarterly 

Check and tighten electrical connections Quarterly 

Check belts and replace as required Quarterly 

Check crankcase heater Quarterly 

Check motor and blower bearings Quarterly 

Check oil level in comp. (where applic.) Quarterly 

Check operation of t-stat Quarterly 

Check unit for refrigerant leaks Quarterly 

Clean OSA filter Quarterly 

Clean condenser coils Quarterly 

Inspect coils for blockage, clean as req Quarterly 

Lubricate bearings Quarterly 

Record temperature split ______________ Quarterly 

Test unit for proper operation Quarterly 

Lubricate bearings Quarterly 

Record temperature split ______________ Quarterly 

Test unit for proper operation Quarterly 

 

 

EXCLUSIONS:  

Third-party fees: Textura, Service Channel, Compliance Depot, etc., After-hours labor, Federal, state, local, 

sales, use, excise, or similar taxes   

 

 

 

  

VII.v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson 29



HUNTER-DAVISSON, INC. 
 

 

 

Page 3 of 3 20200210-152221.docm 02/10/2020 

 

 

We will provide the aforementioned scope of work for a total sum of: 

 

Per Visit: $1,245.00     Annual Cost:$4,980.00. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Nate Bell  

Preventative Maintenance Sales 

 

 

 

 

 

Acceptance of Proposal: 

 

LABOR RATE: 

Regular Labor Rate 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. is currently $123.00 per hour. Overtime Labor Rate is currently 

$184.50 per hour.  All services will be performed during Hunter-Davisson, Inc.’s normal business hours, which 

are Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Services rendered outside normal business hours, or on 

holidays, will be billed at one and a half times the Regular Labor Rate.  All service calls are subject to a Truck 

Charge and Travel Time.  Service Rates and Truck Charge are subject to change.  

 

AGREEMENT TERMS:  
The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date hereof and continue for an initial period of one 

(1) year, and shall be renewed automatically each year thereafter, unless this Agreement has been terminated as 

provided herein. Agreements will be reviewed annually and may be subject to an increase in price. At such time, a 

revised agreement will be issued by Hunter Davisson, Inc. for approval.  This agreement may be canceled by either 

party at any time by submitting a 30 day written notice. No cancellation fee shall apply.  

 

By my signature below, I certify that I have read and agree to the provisions set forth in this agreement and to 

the terms and conditions posted at www.hunterdavisson.com/terms  dated March 30, 2016 V1.0 and am duly 

authorized to bind above Company to such provisions. 

 

 

Date of Acceptance: _____________     Signature: ________________________________ 

VII.v. Preventative Maintenance agreement with Hunter-Davisson 30

http://www.hunterdavisson.com/terms


“THE KNOWN UNIVERSE”  
A project in development 
by Chas Martin  
 
 
A community is comprised of individuals. Its 
strength comes from the collective power of 
diverse individuals working in collaboration. 
Conversation is the heart of that connection. 
 
“The Known Universe,” is a sculpture that 

triggers a variety of interpretations. The four 

individual figures have no apparent gender, 

race or religion. Each faces a different 

direction. Their connection is through the 

unifying circle symbolizing community.  

The title references what we know as the 

boundary of possibilities we perceive. As 

knowledge expands, so does the realm of 

possibilities. That inclusive potential is vital to 

the community’s health and sustainability.  

I am proposing to create a larger than life version of this sculpture. It will be funded primarily by a grant 

through the Oregon Community Foundation’s Creative Heights program. The project will be 

accomplished in partnership with Columbia Center for the Arts which will manage the finances.  

If this grant is awarded, work will begin in August of this year. Fabrication and installation will take about 

one year. The full program, however, is larger than the sculpture. A series of activities in collaboration 

with CCA will include talks, workshops, and a year-long project display documenting the process as it 

evolves from concept to completion. The theme of the talks and display will focus on “Visualization to 

Realization” – the process of seeing the invisible and bringing that vision into tangible form.  

The next step is identifying a location for the finished sculpture. Art of Community (Big Art), the 

organization that manages the placement of most of the public sculptures in Hood River has suggested 

the Hood River County Library as a potential location. Talks have been initiated with the City Planning 

Department and several supportive community individuals to help move this project forward.  

A tentative commitment from Columbia Center for the Arts fulfills the nonprofit partnership 

requirement established by OCF. A letter of support from the Hood River County Library would be a 

valuable addition to my grant application.  

"The Known Universe" by Chas Martin 

VII.vii.a. Description of the art project 31



I will gladly make a short presentation to the board to explain my vision, the process and my credentials. 

I anticipate public relations opportunities for the Library and CCA to advance their respective agendas 

and enhance connections with the community.  

A few details about the execution: 

 Proposed location is the circular seating area to the right of the Library’s entrance   

 The sculpture will be approximately 7’ x 7’ x 7’ 

 The supporting concrete base will be about 4’ in diameter and 3’ tall permitting foot traffic  

 Fabrication will be a welded steel armature covered with a permanent, durable surface 

 

Contact Information: 

Chas Martin 

7830 SW 40th Ave. 

Studio #7 

Portland, OR 97219 

 

503 459 1009 

Chas@ChasMartin 

https://www.ChasMartin.com 

 

VII.vii.a. Description of the art project 32

https://www.chasmartin.com/


VII.vii.b. Photo of proposed sculpture 33



VII.vii.c. Resume Chas Martin 34

mailto:chas@chasmartin.com
https://www.chasmartin.com/


VII.vii.c. Resume Chas Martin 35


	Meeting and Study Rooms Policy

